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leading to his fall in the record in any event, but were nonetheless willing to not do so. The
prosecutors then asked us to present our proposal to their supervisor in the U.S. Attorney’s
Office. On January 10, 2012, the following e-mail was sent to their supervisor:

An issue has arisen in the Nozette case concerning the parties’
approach to the upcoming sentencing hearing. In response to our
suggestion that the parties limit their presentations, [prosecutors]
have told us that they contemplate a more expansive approach,
including playing portions of the videotapes of the undercover
sting. After we responded that such an approach will require us to
reconsider our plans, [prosecutor] suggested that [ write you and
set out position in more detail.

It is our view that the sentencing hearing should be a short and
summary proceeding in light of the fact that Judge Friedman has
already accepted the Rule 11(e)(1)( C) agreement and the factual
basis of the plea has been expansively spread on the public record
through the Indictment, Complaint and Factual Proffer, the latter of
which Dr. Nozette adopted in open court at the plea proceeding.
Thus, we believe that the government need do nothing more than
inform Judge Friedman that Dr. Nozette has fulfilled his
cooperation requirement and state that it does not oppose the
request that the Court recommend that Dr. Nozette be designated to
a low or minimum security institution. While we believe it
unnecessary, we recognize that the government may feel it
important to stress the seriousness of the offense but that can also
be done in a summary manner that does not require playing the
videotapes etc. Consistent with this approach, we initially planned
to make a short presentation of perhaps 5 minutes, simply reciting
the contributions Dr. Nozette has made in his career and
referencing his mental state during the time of the offense.

We understand that there are few limits on what the parties can do
at sentencing and do not question the government’s discretion to
approach the hearing in the manner it deems best, including
playing portions of the videotapes. But, assuming that is how the
government elects to proceed, our obligation to Dr. Nozette will
require us to take a significantly different approach in both the
sentencing memorandum and hearing itself than initially planned.

As noted, the basic facts from the government’s perspective have



(Emphasis added). After the defense received no response to the above e-mail (we never did),

the undersigned again spoke with the lead prosecutor and reiterated the same message - again, to

no avail.
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been set out in several publicly-filed documents. But, as we set out
in our sealed letter of June 7, 2011, there are several troubling
aspects of this operation including the planning of the sting despite
knowledge of Dr. Nozette’s precarious mental state, the undercover
agent’s obsession with getting Dr. Nozette to reveal classified
information despite his repeated initial refusals, the agent’s playing
on Dr. Nozette’s religion and long-time family support of Israel,
the agent’s unnecessary dangling of monetary and other
enticements in front of Dr. Nozette, as well as other matters
referenced in the aforementioned letter and our later oral
presentation. These aspects of the operation, which potentially
shed a much different light on Dr. Nozette’s actions than that
shone by the government, have not been publicly revealed or
discussed. In light of the fact that the approach adopted by the
agents in this case raises issues of public interest and puts Dr.
Nozette’s actions in a richer and more sympathetic context, we
arguably have a duty to ensure that the record is complete. But, in
light of the agreed disposition that has already been accepted by
the Court, we concluded that there is no necessity to gratuitously
embarrass or criticize the agents or the government or otherwise
get into unnecessary matters. If, however, the government insists
on a different approach and opening up the sentencing hearing
beyond what is strictly necessary, then we feel we have no other
choice than to fulsomely defend and explain Dr. Nozette's actions
on the public record.

The defense’s multiple offers could not have more clear. The government’s claim in fn. 1

could not ring more hollow.

Respectfully submitted,
'y

Robert L. Tucker
John C. Kiyonaga
Counsel for Dr. Nozette
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby state that on Sunday, March 18, 2012, I made the above Reply to Government’s
Sentencing Memoranda available to the Court Security Officer for filing.

Robert L. Tucker




